IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

SEP	28	1994
CLERK, SUI		

FILED

SID J. WHITE

ļ.

THEWELL	HAMILTON,	:	
	Appellant,	:	
v.		: CASE NO.	7 8, 576
STATE O	F FLORIDA,	:	
	Appellee.	:	
		/	

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

NANCY A. DANIELS PUBLIC DEFENDER SECOND JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

W. C. MCLAIN ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER FLORIDA BAR NO. 201170 LEON COUNTY COURTHOUSE FOURTH FLOOR NORTH 301 SOUTH MONROE STREET TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32301 (904) 488-2458

ATTORNEY FOR APPELLANT

SERVED LATE DAYS

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

References to the lower court's clerk's record will be designated with the prefix "R" followed by the page number. Similar references with the prefixes "Tr" and "SR" will be used for the transcript of the trial and the supplemental record filed in this case.

All of the trial exhibits, except a firearm, were lost before the commencement of this appeal. Although a number of the photographic exhibits were reconstructed at a hearing held on February 4, 1994, via copies which were available.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

(1) Procedural Progress of the Case

On October 15, 1986, a Holmes County grand jury returned an indictment charging Thewell E. Hamilton with two counts of first degree murder for the shooting deaths of his wife, Madeleine Hamilton, and his stepson, Michael Luposello. (R 13) Hamilton's first trial in this case resulted in his convictions as charged and two death sentences. (R 299-303, 321-325) On appeal, this Court reversed his convictions for a new trial. Hamilton v. State, 547 So.2d. 630 (Fla. 1989). At the second trial held on November 13 through November 18, 1989, Hamilton was again found guilty as charged of the two murders. (R 467) The jury returned a recommendation of death by a vote of seven to five. (R 468, Tr 853) However, before sentencing, the presiding judge, Circuit Judge W. Fred Turner, granted Hamilton's request for a new penalty phase trial. (R 493) The State appealed the order (R 494), and this Court reversed and remanded the case for sentencing. State v. Hamilton, 574 So.2d 124 (Fla. 1991). Before the remand for sentencing, Judge Turner retired. Circuit Judge Clinton Foster was assigned to the case. (R 540)

Prior to sentencing, Hamilton objected to being sentenced by a substitute judge who had not presided over the guilt or penalty phases of the trial. (R 569-571) He asked for a new penalty phase trial with a new jury. (R 572-573) Judge Foster denied the motion, stating that he had read the transcript of

- 2 -

the trial and was sufficiently familiar with the case to impose sentence. (Tr 880-886)

On August 5, 1991, Judge Foster adjudged Hamilton guilty and sentenced him to death. (R 575-584) The court found two aggravating circumstances: (1) the homicides were especially heinous, atrocious or cruel; and (2) the homicides were committed in a cold, calculated and premeditated manner. (R 582) In mitigation, the court found and considered four circumstances: (1) Hamilton had no significant history of prior criminal activity; (2) Hamilton's age at the time of the offenses; (3) the blood alcohol level of Madeleine Hamilton at the time of her death; and (4) Hamilton's military record and his good character. (R 582)

Hamilton filed his notice of appeal to this Court on September 3, 1991. (R 586)

(2) Facts -- Guilt Phase

Thewell Hamilton grew up in the southern part of Alabama, dropped out of school at age 17 and joined the Air Force. (Tr 651-652). After four years, he transferred to the Army and retired from the military with 20 years of service. (Tr 652). He married Hedwig Hamilton, whom he had met in Germany, in 1968. (Tr 652). Thewell returned to Alabama and worked for the Michelin Tire Company as a machinery mechanic. (Tr 652). He worked there eight years, until the time of his arrest. (Tr 652) While working at the tire company, Thewell met Madeleine Luposello, another employee at the company. Thewell and

- 3 -

Madeleine had an affair which led to Thewell's divorce from Hedwig, although he and Hedwig remained good friends. (Tr 643-644) Thewell and Madeleine married and moved to the Esto area in northern Holmes County. (Tr 385, 653) Madeleine's son from a previous marriage, Michael Luposello, lived with them as did the two children born to Madeleine after her marriage to the Thewell. (Tr 653). Madeleine was terminated from her job with the tire company. (Tr 660-661)

Lucille Watson lived across the dirt road from the Hamiltons. (Tr 386). On September 18, 1986, between 7:30 and 8:00 p.m., Watson walked outside of her house. (Tr 386). She heard a gunshot. (Tr 386) She then heard two more gunshots. (Tr 386-387). The shots came from the Hamiltons' residence. (Tr 387) Watson did not see anyone come in or go out of the residence at that time. (Tr 387). Between the first shot and the second shot, she remembered a pause. (Tr 387). When she heard the last shot, Watson saw a streak of fire at the Hamiltons' house. (Tr 388). After the last shot, Watson heard the sound of pellets hitting the roof of a shed in her yard. (Tr 388).

At 7:37 p.m. on the same day, Mike Taylor of the Holmes County Ambulance Service received a call. (Tr 372-373, 383-384). Taylor said the male caller asked for an ambulance to come to his house because, "some son-of-a-bitch had come in and killed my whole family." (Tr 382). Along with another EMT, Wayne Carnley, Taylor drove the ambulance to the Hamilton residence. (Tr 374). They arrived at the small frame house at 7:51

- 4 -

p.m. (Tr 374-375) Sheriff's deputies arrived within two minutes of Taylor's arrival at the residence. (Tr 378, 397-398). Inside the residence, Taylor found the bodies of Madeleine Hamilton and Michael Luposello. Madeleine's body was lying in the kitchen area between the kitchen and the livingroom area of the small house. (Tr 377). Michael was lying in the livingroom. (Tr 377). Both had been shot with a shotgun. (Tr 479, 485) Thewell Hamilton was also present, and Taylor described him as emotionless. (Tr 375) Shortly after the officers arrived, Thewell was kneeling beside Madeleine's body and embracing her. (Tr 378-379). Thewell wore a shirt which had blood and flesh splattered on the front and back. (Tr 426-427) The blood on the back was lower than the shoulder and was not smeared. (Tr 426-427) Hamilton also wore house slippers. (Tr 427-428) Taylor testified that upon hearing Thewell's voice, he recognized his voice to be the same one making the call for the ambulance. (Tr 381-382).

Investigator Eric Adams asked Thewell what had happened. (Tr 432) Hamilton told Adams that he was in the bedroom with the children when he heard loud voices and gunshots. (Tr 432) When he heard someone exit the back door, Hamilton left the children and found his wife and stepson. (Tr 432) Hamilton mentioned that Madeleine's ex-husband had made threats toward them in the past. (Tr 432) Adams said he smelled alcohol coming from Hamilton at the time of the statement. (Tr 433)

Adams and FDLE crime scene analyst, Laura Rousseau, testified to the findings made a the scene. (Tr 396, 449) They

- 5 -

testified using photographs and charts depicting the crime scene diagrams of the residence. The charts, introduced as State Exhibits No. 1-A and 1-B, were lost. (SR 89) A copy of one of the charts was introduced during the hearing to reconstruct the exhibits. (SR 70-80, 89) However, it could only be identified as a copy of one of the two exhibits, but not which of the two it was. (SR 70-80, 89) A large amount of blood was found in the kitchen and livingroom area of the house. (Tr 405-411) Blood was spattered over the walls and cabinets in the kitchen. (Tr 405, 407, 411) There were footprints in blood, one set consistent with someone wearing slippers and the other from a shoe. (Tr 414, 462-464) The prints consistent with slippers were found in front of the sofa, leading away from Madeleine's body toward Michael's. (Tr 467-468) Similar prints were found in the kitchen. (Tr 405-406) A bloody shoe print was located just inside the utility room door. (Tr 405) Four or five shoe prints were found on the steps leading outside. (Tr 443) Neither Madeleine nor Michael were wearing shoes. (Tr 414) Madeleine had blood on the bottoms of her feet, but the bottoms of Michael's feet were clean. (Tr 414) The blood found in the kitchen area appeared to have drag marks through it. (Tr 410-413) Thewell's clothes which had blood on them that he wore that night were seized. (Tr 426-428)

Investigators found a .16 gauge, double-barrel shotgun and fired and unfired shotgun shells at the residence. (Tr 455-457, 459-461). The shotgun was located outside, lying underneath a van. (Tr 423-424, 444, 465-466). No usable latent fingerprints

- 6 -

were on the gun. (Tr 509-513). One unfired shotgun shell was found inside the van and additional unfired shells were inside a dresser drawer in Michael's bedroom. (Tr 459-461). A total of four fired shells were found in the kitchen/dining area of the house during the investigation. (Tr 455-457) Ballistics testing showed that the expended shells were fired from the .16 gauge shotgun. (Tr 523-528). The expended shells were all Remington Peters brand, 16 gauge, number six shot. (Tr 528-529). Number six size lead pellets were found in both bodies which are consistent with the size shots originally loaded in the expended shotgun shells. (Tr 530-531, 532-533). Two power waddings from the expended shells were found, one in the kitchen and another under a chair in the livingroom. (Tr 545, 458) Additionally, the power wadding recovered from the body of Michael was consistent with a type of power wadding which would have been loaded in the fired shotgun shells. (Tr 531). Shotgun pellets were found in the carpet near Michael's head. (Tr 458) Adams said pellet holes were present in the wall around the livingroom window and there appeared to be pellet holes through the screen. (Tr 415-416) This window is in a straight line with the Watson residence across the road and about 300 feet away. (Tr 417) Watson's calf shed was between her house and the Hamiltons' residence. (Tr 417-418)

Doctor William Sybers performed autopsies on both Madeleine and Michael. (Tr 477). He testified to the jury using photographic slides which were admitted in evidence over defense objections. (Tr 477-478). These slides were among the

- 7 -

lost court exhibits which could not be reconstructed (SR Vol. II, 89-92). Sybers opined that Madeleine was shot three times with a shotgun. (Tr 479). He found an entrance wound to the right leg, one to the left leg, and a third to the chest. (Tr 479). Both of the wounds to the legs were in the back, calf section of the leq. (Tr 479, 481-484). Sybers concluded that two shots made the two wounds to the back of the legs. (Tr 482). The shot to the back of the right leg did not go through the leg. (Tr 482). On cross-examination, Sybers noted that the x-rays of Madeleine's legs showed only eight pellets in the left leg and three or four pellets in the right leg. (Tr 494-495). Sybers used photographic slides of an x-ray of both legs to make his point. (Tr 482-483). This slide is unavailable since it is one of the lost trial exhibits which could not be reconstructed. (SR Vol. II, 89-92). Sybers was also of the opinion that the shots to the leg occurred before the shot to the chest based on blood flow patterns left on the body. (Tr 477-479). He concluded that Madeleine was either sitting or standing at the time of the shot to her chest. (Tr 478-479). The shot to the legs would have knocked her down but would not have caused death. (Tr 483). The shot to the chest destroyed her heart and caused death. (Tr 480). Sybers did not do a drug screening on Madeleine since there was no urine. (Tr 497). He did not do a blood test for drugs. (Tr 497). He did find Madeleine's blood alcohol level to be .014, the equivalent of two cans of beer. (Tr 504).

- 8 -

Michael Luposello suffered two gunshots wounds. (Tr 485). The first shot was to the chest. (Tr 485). Sybers concluded it was the first wound because of the amount of blood in the chest cavity. (Tr 485). The second shot was to the head behind the right ear and penetrated the brain causing death within seconds. (Tr 485). Consequently, the chest shot would have occurred first because the heart would have continued to beat, pumping blood into the chest cavity. (Tr 485-486). Sybers further concluded that Michael was upright at the time of the chest shot (Tr 485-487), and he would have been alive at the time of the head shot, since the shot to the chest did not hit the heart. (Tr 488). Sybers was of the opinion that Michael was probably conscious at the time of the shot to the head. (Tr 488).

Investigator Eric Adams obtained a tape recorded statement from Thewell at the county jail on October 16, 1986. (Tr 577-578)[This tape recording was introduced as State's Exhibit No. 19, which has been lost (SR Vol. II, 90-91); a transcript appears at Tr 543-555] At this interview, Hamilton asked Adams to investigate further for the perpetrator of the crimes. (Tr 544-548) Hamilton mentioned some neighbors who frequently used drugs and caused disturbances. (Tr 545-548) Hamilton said the shotgun was used for hunting and belonged to him and Michael. (Tr 548) Adams turned the interview to the subject of Hamilton's actions on the day of the crimes. (Tr 550) Hamilton said that upon hearing the shot, he came out, struggled with someone and took the gun away. (Tr 554-555) He tried to help

- 9 -

Madeleine and Michael. (Tr 555) He picked up the gun and put it underneath the van to keep the gun away from the children. (Tr 553-554) When Adams asked Hamilton why his son, who was two-years-old, made a comment about Hamilton having shot the victims, Hamilton explained his son must have opened the bedroom door and seen him with the gun. (Tr 553-554) During the interview, Hamilton also mentioned Madeleine's ex-husband, Gus Luposello, since he had threatened to kill Madeleine and Michael. (Tr 551-552)

Bernard Luposello, Madeleine's ex-husband, testified. (Tr 608) He said he was in Washington, D.C., without transportation, on September 19, 1986. (Tr 608-609) His truck had to be repaired and it also had been impounded. (Tr 610) Luposello said he lacked the money at that time to get the truck returned. (Tr 610)

During the defense case, Thewell's aunt, Genavieve Giddens, testified to Thewell's good character and her observations of Madeleine's erratic behavior. (Tr 620-625) She said that Thewell had always been a gentle, nonviolent person. (Tr 621, 624-625) Giddens had also seen Madeleine several times, the last time the month before her death. (Tr 622) Madeleine became extremely upset over minor incidents. (Tr 622) Giddens said she gave one the children a cookie and Madeleine reacted "as if I had given him a lighted dynamite." (Tr 622) Another time, Madeleine became hysterical when Michael received a busy signal on the telephone when trying to confirm a reservation

- 10 -

for a camp site. (Tr 622) Giddens said she suspected Madeleine was on drugs of some kind. (Tr 623-624)

,

An employee at the Michelin Tire Company, Joseph Hastings, testified about his experiences working with Madeleine. (Tr 635-638) They attended a machinists course through work at the junior college. (Tr 636) The students frequently worked on projects as a group. (Tr 637-638) His impression was that Madeleine was a moody person. (Tr 637) She could be friendly one day and too angry to speak to anyone the next. (Tr 637-638) Hasting testified, that Madeleine "would be a rough bastard." (Tr 638)

Hedwig Hamilton, Thewell's ex-wife, testified they were married for 15 years. (Tr 642) She describe Thewell as a good man (Tr 642), and she never knew him to be violent toward anyone during their marriage. (Tr 642-642) After the divorce, she and Thewell remained friends. (Tr 642) Thewell would check on Hedwig occasionally. (Tr 644) In the afternoon of September 19, 1986, the day of the homicides, Thewell stopped at her house in Alabama to pick up some insurance documents or car tags. (Tr 640-641) He drank one beer while he was there and left by 5:00 or 6:00 p.m. (Tr 645)

Thewell Hamilton testified in his own defense. (Tr 651) He detailed his actions the afternoon and evening of the shootings. (Tr 651-675) After leaving work around 3:45 p.m., Thewell stopped at two hardware stores to buy lumber for his carport. (Tr 654-655) Then, he drove to his ex-wife's house to pick up some insurance papers or an automobile tag. (Tr 655-

- 11 -

656) Thewell explained that he worked in Alabama and still maintained an Alabama tag and driver's license. (Tr 655-656) He used his ex-wife's address. (Tr 655-656) He also would stop by her house to pay her alimony and occasionally assisted her performing an odd job. (Tr 656) The 6:00 p.m. news was on television when Thewell left her house. (Tr 658) Less than an hour later, Thewell arrived home. (Tr 658) He kissed Madeleine and the small children, and he and Michael fed the hogs. (Tr 658-659)

Madeleine and Michael continued an argument when Thewell and Michael returned. (Tr 659) They argued a lot. (Tr 659) Thewell said he usually sided with Michael, but he did not interfere in these disagreements between Michael and his mother. (Tr 659, 663) During this time, Madeleine suffered from a drug problem. (Tr 660-662, 678-679) Thewell said she started taking a prescription drug which seemed to help her mood. (Tr 660) However, she began using other drugs as well which caused a problem. (Tr 660) She was fired from her job because of absence. (Tr 660-661) Once, Thewell called the sheriff's office to seek help in finding out who was supplying Madeleine with drugs. (Tr 678) He had come home from work and found her naked from the waist down. (Tr 678) Michael had covered her with a blanket and said two men in a truck had brought her home that way. (Tr 679) When taking drugs, Thewell said Madeleine was quick to anger. (Tr 661-662) Although Madeleine argued with Michael, Thewell never saw her hit Michael. (Tr 662)

- 12 -

While Madeleine and Michael argued that evening of the shooting, Thewell took the small children to a bedroom to put them to bed. (Tr 663) He was in the bedroom when he heard a two gunshots within a few seconds of each other. (Tr 663, 694-697) Thewell did not leave the children in the bedroom immediately. (Tr 663, 697-698) They were crying and scared. (Tr 663) After calming them a moment, Thewell left the bedroom. (Tr 663) When he entered the hallway, he saw Michael on the floor with blood on him. (Tr 664) He then saw Madeleine in the kitchen area near the cabinets holding the shotgun. (Tr 664) As he entered the livingroom/dining area, he heard a door slam. (Tr 664) He walked up to Madeleine and snatched the gun from her. (Tr 665) She did not let go of the gun and they both spun around. (Tr 666-667) Thewell had grabbed the barrel and pointed it down as he also grabbed the stock end of the firearm. (Tr 667) The gun discharged striking Madeleine in the legs. (Tr 667-668) Thewell said his finger must have hit the trigger on the old shotgun causing it to fire. (Tr 666-668) He was in shock. (Tr 668) He helped Madeleine across the kitchen to the sofa in the living area of the house, (Tr 668) This area of the small house was not a great distance. (Tr 668-670) She sat down on the end of the sofa. (Tr 671) Thewell lay the shotgun down on the dining table and the shotgun discharged again striking Madeleine. (Tr 671-672) He tried to help her, but realized his efforts would be futile. (Tr 672-673) Thewell checked Michael and then tried to telephone for help. (Tr 673) Every time he picked up the telephone, someone else on the party line

- 13 -

was using the phone. (Tr 673) He asked a woman on the line to call for help. (Tr 673-674) Before the ambulance arrived, Thewell took the shotgun outside to keep it out of sight of the children. (Tr 676)

Dr. Gary Gene Cumberland, a forensic pathologist, reviewed the autopsy report on Madeleine, reviewed Syber's testimony, and examined the photographic slide prepared during the autopsy. (Tr 721-723) He differed with Sybers on two points. First, Cumberland rendered an opinion that the wounds to Madeleine's legs were by a single shot rather than two. (Tr 725-726) Although he could not exclude the possibility that the wounds were the result of two shots, his professional opinion was the one shot caused the wounds. (Tr 725-729) Second, contrary to Syber's testimony that a test for drugs could not be performed because no urine was available, Cumberland testified that drug testing could be performed using blood or vitreous fluid from the eyeball. (Tr 723-724)

The State presented one rebuttal witness, Eric Adams. (Tr 732) He was asked if there was any blood found on the sofa in the livingroom. (Tr 732) Adams testified he saw blood on the arm sofa. (Tr 732) The prosecutor introduced a photograph of the sofa as State's exhibit no. 34. (Tr 732-733) The witness used the photograph to show where he found the blood. (Tr 733) Exhibit no. 34 is one of the lost trial exhibits which could not be reconstructed for this appeal. (SR Vol. II, 91)

- 14 -

(3) Motion to Suppress Statements

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