FILED

SID J WHITE

JAN 3 1995

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CLERK, SUPREME COURT
By
Chief Deputy Clerk

THEWELL HAMILTON,

Appellant,

v.

Case No.: 78,576

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FOURTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND FOR HOLMES COUNTY, FLORIDA

ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

GYPSY BAILEY ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL FLORIDA BAR #0797200

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL THE CAPITOL TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-1050 (904)488-0600

COUNSEL FOR APPELLEE

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

this case, their potential for prejudice slight, and any error harmless, and reversed the order.

On remand, because retrial Judge Turner had retired, Judge Foster presided (T 880). In July 1991, defense counsel filed two motions, objecting to Hamilton's sentencing by Judge Foster and seeking a new penalty phase (R 569-73). At the August 1991 hearing on these motions, defense counsel noted that all evidence had been lost for over a year (T 882). Judge Foster denied the motion for a new penalty phase, holding that, under Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.700(c), he had the authority to proceed with sentencing based on his review of the transcripts of the guilt and penalty phases (T 886-87). Judge Foster reviewed the evidence (T 890-92); found two aggravating factors -- HAC and CCP (T 892); considered four mitigating circumstances -no significant history of prior criminal activity, age, blood alcohol level of victim Madeline Hamilton, Hamilton's military record and previous good character (T 892), while finding that five mitigating circumstances were inapplicable (T 893); found that the mitigating circumstances did not outweigh the aggravating factors (T 894); and imposed sentences of death (T 894).

On direct appeal to this Court, this Court granted a defense motion to return the record to the circuit court for the addition of numerous missing items; granted a defense

motion for an order directing the court reporter to complete transcription; granted a defense motion for an order compelling the court reporter to complete transcription; denied a defense motion to locate the exhibits in this case, but ordered the circuit court to file a statement that a box of exhibits had been lost and to reconstitute the record; and granted a second defense motion to compel the court reporter to complete transcription. The trial court held a hearing pursuant to this last order (SR 1-17). This Court then denied a defense motion to have this case remanded for a new trial based on the loss of the trial exhibits, but relinquished its jurisdiction to the trial court for reconstruction of the record (SR 19).

On January 21, 1994, the trial court conducted a hearing pursuant to this Court's order (SR 98-139). On February 4, 1994, the trial court continued the hearing to reconstruct the record (SR 26-81). Subsequently, the court entered an order reconstructing the record (SR 89-92).

This Court denied a second defense motion to remand this case for a new trial based on the lack of trial exhibits, without prejudice to Hamilton to argue how the lack of exhibits called for a new trial. Hamilton submitted his initial brief on September 28, 1994, and this answer brief follows.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Issue I is procedurally barred for two reasons. One, the law of the case doctrine precludes consideration of issues which could have been raised in a prior appeal. Second, counsel below objected on different grounds than those raised in this appeal. In any event, the manner in which Adams took Hamilton's October 1986 statement is fully consonant with state and federal law.

Issue II is also procedurally barred, because counsel below did not object to the portion of the tape that referred to the statement of Hamilton's two year old son when it was played to the jury. Counsel instead waited to object when the prosecutor referred to it in his closing argument. In any event, the prosecutor's argument was proper as it referred to an item previously admitted into evidence without defense objection.

As to Issue III, the trial court properly found that HAC and CCP existed at Hamilton's second sentencing. The state presented more detailed testimony of these factors through Adams, Sybers, and Williams which proved these factors beyond a reasonable doubt. As to Issue IV, death proportionate to Hamilton's sentence is sentences affirmed by this Court in cases involving similar facts and a similar balancing of aggravating and mitigating factors.

As to Issue V, although Judge Foster did not conduct a new penalty phase upon inheriting the case after the state's appeal to this Court, Hamilton may not rely on Corbett, based on Ferguson's holding that Corbett should not be applied retroactively. As to Issue VI, the trial court applied the proper standard in sentencing Hamilton to death, as it fully examined the record and independently weighed aggravation against mitigation. Issue VII is procedurally barred, because Hamilton failed to object to the HAC and CCP jury instructions below.

ARGUMENT

Issue I

WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY DENIED HAMILTON'S MOTION TO SUPPRESS HIS OCTOBER 16, 1986 STATEMENT TO INVESTIGATOR ADAMS.

Initially, this issue appears to be barred by the law of the case doctrine. Although Hamilton challenged his statements at his first trial, he did not raise a suppression issue in his first direct appeal to this Court. Instead, Hamilton has waited until this, his second direct appeal, to claim that his October 1986 statement should not have been admitted at his retrial.

This Court has consistently held that the law of the case doctrine applies to bar consideration of issues which could have been presented in a prior appeal. This Court noted in Rogers v. State, 23 So. 2d 154 (Fla. 1945): "Nothing is presented here which we thing warrants us in departing from our opinion and judgment in that case which became the law of the case insofar as it determine all the issues which were presented, or which might have been presented at that time." Id. at 155 (emphasis supplied). More recently, this Court reaffirmed this principle in Strazzulla v. Hendrick, 155 So. 2d 1 (Fla. 1965), observing that the law of the case principle existed to avoid reconsideration of points which were, or should have been,

adjudicated in a former appeal of the same case; and that its purpose was to lend stability to judicial decisions, to avoid piecemeal appeals, and to bring litigations to an end as expeditiously as possible. See also Airvac, Inc. v. Ranger Ins. Co., 330 So. 2d 467 (Fla. 1976) (the law of the case doctrine is applicable to issues which could have been, but were not, raised). Because Hamilton could have raised this issue in his prior appeal to this Court, this Court should refuse to address it at this juncture.

This issue is procedurally barred for yet another reason. Below, defense counsel objected to the tape only on the grounds that the statement was not voluntarily rendered and that Hamilton was represented by counsel. Specifically, counsel argued that, if a defendant has appointed counsel, counsel "should at least be consulted as to his desire of whether or not he wants the police to interview his client in their investigation." (T 556). The court found that Hamilton initiated the conversation voluntarily and held that the statement would be admitted (T 560).

Based on defense counsel's limited objection below, and his new argument on appeal that Adams failed to honor Hamilton's right to cease further questions, to honor Hamilton's assertion of his right to remain silent, and to honor Hamilton's statement as a reassertion of his right to counsel, this Court should deem this issue procedurally

barred. This Court has held consistently that, for an issue to be preserved properly for appellate review, the appellate arguments must be the same as the arguments raised in the lower court. Peterka v. State, 640 So. 2d 59 (Fla. 1994); Bertolotti v. State, 565 So. 2d 1343 (Fla. 1990); Jackson v. State, 451 So. 2d 458 (Fla. 1984), cert. denied, 488 U.S. 871 (1985); Steinhorst v. State, 412 So. 2d 332 (Fla. 1982).

In the event this Court reaches the merits of this issue, it is well aware that a trial court's ruling on a motion to suppress comes to this Court with a presumption of correctness, and that this Court should interpret the evidence and all reasonable inferences and deductions derived therefrom in a manner most favorable to sustain the trial court's ruling. <u>Johnson v. State</u>, 438 So.2d 774 (Fla. 1983); <u>McNamara v. State</u>, 357 So. 2d 410 (Fla. 1978). Here, the trial court ruled correctly that Hamilton initiated the October 16, 1986 conversation with Adams.

On October 14, 1986 (T 581), Hamilton submitted a written request for Adams to speak with him (T 564, 568). On October 16, 1986, Adams read Hamilton his Miranda rights, and then permitted Hamilton to proceed (T 581).

Although there is a written motion to suppress (R 96), this March 1987 motion concerned only Hamilton's September 20, 1986 statement, not the October 1986 statement.

Miranda v. Arizona, 384 U.S. 436 (1966).

Hamilton said that he had tried to determine who might have killed his wife and stepson, and thought it might be a family that Madeline wanted to "turn . . . in to . . . the Health Department" or a retarded neighbor (T 582-83). Hamilton asked Adams to check into these suspects, and Adams agreed (T 584).

Hamilton said the shotgun belonged to his family and that he had had it for some time (T 585). Hamilton then stated that he had heard on the news that the grand jury had indicted him for first degree murder (T 586). In response, Adams asked: "[Y]ou know that if we hadn't had some pretty good evidence they wouldn't have indicted you? Now I realize it must be kind of hard for you to sit there and even think about doing something like that, but have you thought about what happened that night?" (T 587). Hamilton responded: "Mr. Cole told me not to talk to anyone on it." (T 587). Adams said "OK." (T 587). Hamilton then stated:

And, uh . . . the reason, I don't you know . . . I was in shock. And that . . . that terrible thing just went through, and all that. Seeing your wife and stepson on the floor and all that. I didn't . . . I mean, you brought me in here and you told me that I, you know, did this . . . and in other words, I was in such a shock that I didn't care.

(T 587). Adams responded: "Mmm." (T 587). Hamilton continued: "I just followed whatever you said. You know, you said, 'you did this and you did that.'" (T 587).

Adams asked Hamilton if he remembered telling Adams that he and his wife had struggled over the shotgun on the night in question (T 587). Hamilton answered: "Somebody." (T 587). Adams told Hamilton he had said it was his wife (T 588). Hamilton explained: "Well, I was in shock. I was . . . I was out of my mind. I'd been sitting there on that hard bench all night long. I'd worked all day the day before, since early that morning . . . early in the morning." (T 588). Hamilton remembered telling Adams that he thought Gus Luposello had committed the murders, based on a threatening call he had received (T 588). Adams told Hamilton that he had spoken with Carl Luposello, who had stated that, at 5:30 p.m. on the night in question, he had been speaking with his Michael on the telephone overheard Hamilton and Madeline arguing "real loud" in the background (T 589). Hamilton said he did not get home that night until 7:00 p.m., because he had stopped by his exwife's house in Dothan, Alabama, and had not left there until after 6:00 p.m. (T 589-90).

Adams then asked why Hamilton's two year old son said that Hamilton had shot Madeline and Michael (T 590). Hamilton said that his son saw him with the gun when Hamilton picked up it to get it out of the house because he was afraid that the perpetrator was outside and wanted the gun out of his son's sight (T 591-92).

The evidence clearly shows that Adams took Hamilton's statement in a manner fully consonant with Traylor v. State, 596 So. 2d 957 (Fla. 1992). There, this Court held: a suspect has requested the help of a lawyer, no state agent can reinitiate interrogation on any offense throughout the period of custody unless the lawyer is present, although the suspect is free to volunteer a statement to police on his or her own initiative at any time on any subject in the absence of counsel." Id. at 966 (emphasis supplied). The record here is clear that Hamilton himself requested the interview with Hamilton several weeks after having been appointed counsel, and that, after mentioning counsel during his interview with Adams, reinitiated the conversation. The record also wholly belies Hamilton's claim that "[t]he first verbal response to Hamilton after this assertion of his another question about the night rights was homicides." Initial Brief at 29. When Hamilton said that his lawyer had said not to speak to anyone about the night in question, the first verbal response from Adams was "OK." (R 251; T 587). Hamilton then reinitiated conversation by explaining his previous actions, thereby waiving assertion of his right to remain silent.

The most that can be said about Hamilton's statement that "Mr. Cole told me not to speak to anyone on it" is that Hamilton was asserting his right to remain silent about the

details of the murders. Adams's response of "OK" shows that this request was honored. It cannot be said, however, that Hamilton's statement was the equivalent, unequivocal or otherwise, 10 of "I want Mr. Cole here before I say anything else." Hamilton knew he had a lawyer when he requested an interview with Adams in writing on October 14, 1986, because the trial court appointed Mr. Cole to represent Hamilton on September 22, 1986 (R 5).

Hamilton relies on Martinez v. State, 564 So. 2d 1071 (Fla. 1990), where Martinez was arrested, taken to a police substation, and twice advised of his Miranda rights. Later that same day, Martinez was taken to the police station, where he was again advised of his Miranda rights. Martinez orally confessed to a murder, after which a taped statement At the beginning of the tape, Martinez was was taken. advised of his Miranda rights for the fourth time, and again stated that he understood them. During the taped statement, a deputy advised Martinez that he had the right to have counsel present during questioning, and that, if he did not have the money for a lawyer, the county would pay for it. Martinez asked, "But what about if I don't have any money?" The deputy then asked only if Martinez understood his rights

In its June 1994 decision, <u>Davis v. United States</u>, 114 S. Ct. 2350 (1994), the United States Supreme Court held that law enforcement officials may continue questioning a suspect until he or she clearly and unambiguously requests a lawyer.

and if he wanted to talk to him. Martinez responded that he did, and confessed. This Court concluded that Martinez's response "displayed his uncertainty as to whether he was entitled to counsel during the interrogation." 564 So. 2d at 1074. Martinez is not persuasive precedent here, where Hamilton asserted his right to remain silent, which he subsequently waived. Hamilton at no time displayed any uncertainty about being represented by counsel, and never requested that his counsel be present.

Hamilton also misrepresents the holdings of both Traylor and Minnick v. Mississippi, 498 U.S. 146 (1990), in citing them for the proposition that, once a defendant asserts his right to counsel, he cannot waive his rights without counsel being present. Minnick states that Edwards v. Arizona, 451 U.S. 477 (1981), "does not foreclose finding a waiver of Fifth Amendment protections after counsel has been requested, provided the accused has initiated the conversation or discussions with the authorities." Ed. 2d at 499 (emphasis supplied). Traylor follows this reasoning: "Once the right to counsel has been invoked, any subsequent waiver during a police-initiated encounter in the absence of counsel during the same period of custody is invalid, whether or not the accused has consulted with counsel earlier." 596 So. 2d at 966 n.14 (emphasis supplied). In the instant case, there simply is no legitimate claim that Adams initiated the October 16, 1986, conversation, or that he reinitiated the discussion after Hamilton mentioned Mr. Cole. Thus, the situation warned about in Minnick and Traylor -- police initiated conversations in the absence of counsel -- is not at issue here.

In any event, any error in admitting Hamilton's October 16, 1986 statement was harmless. The state proved that the victims had been shot by the gun found under the van on Hamilton's property; that the footprints found near the body of Madeline Hamilton could have been made by Hamilton's slippers; that no one had been seen leaving the Hamilton residence immediately after the shots had been fired; and that Hamilton was at home during the relevant time periods. See Traylor, 596 So. 2d at 973. Because it is clear beyond a reasonable doubt that any error in admitting the statement would not have affected the jury's verdict, any error was harmless. State v. DiGuilio, 491 So. 2d 1129 (Fla. 1986).

Issue II

WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT ABUSED ITS DISCRETION IN OVERRULING HAMILTON'S OBJECTION TO THE STATE'S COMMENT DURING CLOSING ARGUMENT REGARDING THE STATEMENT BY HAMILTON'S TWO YEAR OLD SON.

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